FILED
Court of Appeals
Division I
State of Washington
10/15/2018 2:28 PM

Petition for Supreme Court Review

Supreme Ct No. <u>96</u>433-5

Ct of Appeals No. 76553-1—I

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION I

Housing Authority of City of Seattle, Respondent,

٧.

Stanley Maynor, Petitioner

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE	
V. ARGUMENT	
A. Grounds that qualify a case for review	
VI. CONCLUSION	
RELIEF SOUGHT	
APPENDIX	
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEATTLE, WASHINGTON, a public body corporate and politic, Respondent, v. STANLEY MAYNOR, Appellant	
No. 76553-1-I	
Court of Appeals of Washington, Division One	
UNPUBLISHED OPINION	
ANALYSIS	
Alternative Service	
Commissioner's Powers	
Due Process	
Five Day Notice of Orders and Factual Findings	
Execution of the Writ	
Attorney Fees	
) ORDER DENYING MOTION	
Respondent,	
Rules	
Statutes	

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Petitioner is Stanley Maynor who was designated defendant and appellant in the Superior Court and Court of Appeals respectively.

COURT OF APPEALS DECISION FOR REVIEW

Stanley Maynor seek review of an unpublished Court of Appeals,
Division One decision dated July 30, 2018. See Appendix to Petition for
Review.

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

A. Did Superior Court Commissioner Judson proceed ultra vires on December 19, 2016? Was the December 19, 2016 proceeding an ex parte and uncontested proceeding within the meaning of RCW 2.24.040(9)? Do the procedures embodied in RCW 59.18 supplant RCW 59.12 procedures?

B. In addition to being void because rendered ultra vires are the judgments of December 19, 2016 and February 13, 2017 void for lack of in personam jurisdiction? Was the trial court empowered to adjudicate the merits of the plaintiff's action for money damages, or was the court required to dismiss the action?

C. Petitioner interposed insufficiency of service as an affirmative defense to plaintiff's claim the trial court was vested with jurisdiction over the property under authority RCW 59.18.055. Is the insufficiency of service defense established where, as here, the *plaintiff* endeavored to serve alternative process, notwithstanding CR 4(c), CR 4(c) states service shall

be by the sheriff of the county wherein the service is made, or by the sheriff's deputy, or by any person over 18 years of age who is competent to be a witness in the action, *other than a party*.

D. Is the judgment of February 13, 2017 void because SHA neglected to serve on Maynor either its Motion for restitution or its Certificate for an Order to Show Cause in violation of Civil Rule 5?

E, Did the trial court err by infringing upon Maynor's constitutional and Rule 5 - Rule 7(b)(1) right to notice?

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

"CP" citations refer to REVISED INDEX FILED in KING County Superior Court April 12, 2017. "Op" commends to the court's attention COA decision dated July 30, 2018.

November 7, 2016 SHA filed a "COMPLAINT FOR UNLAWFUL DETAINER" [CP -1] SHA complained of damages, including Rental Damages and Sundry Damages [CP 1 2] SHA's suit included a prayer for money judgment, "plaintiff's costs and disbursements herein, including a reasonable attorney fees (sic)." [CP – 3]. Summons and Complaint has never been personally served on Maynor. [CP 41-43]

Based on SHA's declaration it had hired a professional process server who was unable to serve petitioner, SHA was granted authority for alternative service per RCW 59.18.055. [CP 14-16 & 19]. Although SHA retained a professional process server to serve petitioner personally, plaintiff elected to execute alternative service itself, CR 4(c) to the contrary notwithstanding. For that reason, if alternative service has been accomplished such service was insufficient.

Petitioner's answer denied each allegation of plaintiff's complaint. Maynor interposed affirmative defenses including

1) lack of personal jurisdiction over the person of defendant; 2) insufficiency of service of process, and 3) lack of service of process. [CP

SHA filed, but never served, [CP 23] [CP 24] [CP 29-30] a Motion for Restitution. [CP – 9] SHA filed [CP -9] but never served its Certificate for Order to Show Cause. [[CP 10] CP 23] [CP 24].

SHA's Declarations of Mailing dated November 18, 2016 and November 29, 2016 [CP 23; CP 24] verify Maynor's declaration that SHA did not serve him with its motion for restitution. [CP 29-30]. SHA's Declarations of Mailing dated November 28, 2016 and November 29, 2016 verify Maynor's declaration that SHA did not serve him with its Certificate in support of Motion to Show Cause for writ of restitution.

SHA's notice of its December 19, 2016 motion for restitution hearing did not notify Maynor as to what was at stake on December 19, 2016. [CP 17] SHA's notice of hearing concealed from Maynor the fact that SHA would seek relief different from and greater than recovery of the rental premises.. SHA' notice of December 19, 2016 motion hearing did not notify Maynor as to what "other" relief the court "may" grant IF and only if he did **not** appear. [CP – 17]

SHA's Motion [CP-9] and Certificate notified Maynor with particularity that the only relief SHA was seeking at the show cause hearing was an order of restitution. [CP 9] Likewise, SHA's order to show cause identified only one specified element of relief SHA was seeking at the

show cause hearing. SHA was seeking an order of restitution.

According to SHA's notice of hearing the court "may" could grant other unspecified relief if, and only if, Maynor did not appear at the appointed time and place as required. [CP 17 ¶2]. SHA did not notify Maynor of the legal hazards he was to encounter at the show cause hearing. [CP 17] [CP 41-43] The relief SHA sought, and the relief SHA was granted at the Show Cause hearing of December 19, 2016 was different from and greater than portrayed by the Notice SHA conveyed to Maynor. [CP 41-43] [CP-9] [CP 17], [CP 23] [CP 24] [CP 29-30] a Motion for Restitution. [CP – 9]

In addition to filing and serving an answer interposing several defenses to SHA's suit, [CP 25-26] Maynor filed and served "Partial Statement of Authorities" which served as his brief in opposition to SHA's motion for restitution, the only relief SHA disclosed it was seeking. [CP 27-30] Maynor's Statement of Authorities was submitted under oath [CP 30]SHA's notice of its December 19, 2016 motion for restitution hearing did not notify Maynor as to what was at stake on December 19, 2016. [CP – 17] SHA's notice of hearing concealed from Maynor the fact that SHA would seek relief different from and greater than recovery of the rental premises pendente lite. SHA' notice of December 19, 2016 motion hearing did not notify Maynor as to what "other" relief the court "may" grant IF and only if he

did not appear. [CP - 17]

According to SHA's notice of hearing the court "may" could grant other unspecified relief if, and by fair inference only if, Maynor did not appear at the appointed time and place as required. [CP 17 ¶2]. SHA did not notify Maynor of the legal hazards he was to encounter at the show cause hearing. [CP 17] [CP 41-43] The relief SHA sought, and the relief SHA was granted at the Show Cause hearing of December 19, 2016 was different from and greater than portrayed by any notice conveyed to Maynor. [CP 41-43] [CP-9] [CP 17]

SHA's notice and the December 19, 2016 proceeding bore no resemblance. [CP 9] [CP 17] [CP 41-43] The commissioner entered money judgment against Maynor. [CP 41-43] The trial denied Maynor's motion for revision after SHA claimed RCW 59.12.090 is applicable solely to commercial rentals. [CP 39-46; CP 79-88]

V. ARGUMENT

A. Grounds that qualify a case for review.

The Supreme Court will accept a case for review only if the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest, involves a significant question of law under the state or federal constitution, the decision of the Court of Appeals conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court, or the decision of the Court of Appeals conflicts with another published decision

of the Court of Appeals. RAP 13.4(b). This case satisfies all four grounds for review.

This petition for review should be granted because each of the criteria set forth in RAP 13.4(b) dictate acceptance of review. Petitioner understates the matter. The July 30, 2018 virtually begs for review and not merely because The COA's July 30, 2018 decision is spectacularly flawed. Review should be granted because this case is a case of first impression as to the issue of whether *vel-non* RCW 2.24.040(9) vests Superior Court commissioners with authority to preside over RCW 59.18 show cause hearings; i.e., is a RCW 59.18 show cause hearing an ex parte or uncontested proceeding where both parties are present and voice their conflicting views on the relevant issues.

It is an ineluctable fact that the COA's failure to reverse or even address the fact that the trial court's judgment is inherently antipodal to a court devoid of in personam jurisdiction demands review because it conflicts with numerous decisions of our Courts of Appeal, not to mention decisions of this court.

This petition raises procedural due process issues under both state and federal constitutions . . . issues which were decided in conflict with this jurisdiction's case law. It should not pass unnoticed that the COA's failure to address petitioner's insufficiency of alternative service also conflicts with

COA case law. See CR 4(c) and Crouch v. Friedman, 51 Wn. App. 731, 754 P.2d 1299 (1988) which held that service of process by the plaintiff himself was invalid citing CR 4(c)Maynor notes that the decision at issue which holds that RCW 59.12.090 "does not apply in this residential landlord case" is in conflict with at leastthree cases which hold that Hous. Auth. v. Pleasant126 Wn. App. 382 | 109 P.3d 422 (2005) ¶ 19 Because this case involves a residential tenancy, it is governed by the ResidentialLandlord-Tenant Act (RLTA) of 1973, chapter 59.18 RCW. Leda v. Whisnand, 150Wash.App. 69, 77, 207 P.3d 468 2009). However, the procedures set forth in the generalized unlawful detainer statutes, chapter 59.12 RCW, "apply to the extent they arenot supplanted by those found in the [RLTA]." Pleasant, 126 Wash.App. at 390, 109 P.3d 422.However, as with any suit, where the written or oral presentations of the parties "disclose a material issue of fact, the issue must be resolved at trial." RCW 59.12.130; Pleasant, 126 Wash.App. at 392, 109 P.3d 422.8

VI. CONCLUSION

RELIEF SOUGHT

THIS COURT SHOULD GRANT REVIEW, REVERSE BOTH
INFERIOR COURTS, DISMISS BOTH OF RESPONDENT'S
CAUSES OF ACTION WITH PREJUDICE ON ALL GROUNDS
SAVE LACK OF JURISDICTION, THIS COURT SHOULD
AWARD ATTORNEY FEES AND TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE
OF PETITIONER'S COA AND TRIAL COURT BRIEFING ON
THE ATTORNEY FEE ISSUE. THIS COURT SHOULD
REMAND TO THE SUPERIOR COURT WITH
INSTRUCTIONS TO TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Petitioner is Stanley Maynor who was designated defendant and appellant in the Superior Court and Court of Appeals respectively.

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION FOR REVIEW

Stanley Maynor seek review of an unpublished Court of Appeals, Division One decision dated July 30, 2018. See Appendix to Petition for Review.

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

A. Did Superior Court Commissioner Judson proceed ultra vires on December 19, 2016? Was the December 19, 2016 proceeding an ex parte and uncontested proceeding within the meaning of RCW 2.24.040(9)? Do the procedures embodied in RCW 59.18 supplant RCW 59.12 procedures? B. In addition to being void because rendered ultra vires are the judgments of December 19, 2016 and February 13, 2017 void for lack of in personam jurisdiction? Was the trial court empowered to adjudicate the merits of the plaintiff's action for money damages, or was the court required to dismiss the action?

C. Petitioner interposed insufficiency of service as an affirmative defense

to plaintiff's claim the trial court was vested with jurisdiction over the property under authority RCW 59.18.055. Is the insufficiency of service defense established where, as here, the *plaintiff* endeavored to serve alternative process, notwithstanding CR 4(c), CR 4(c) states service shall be by the sheriff of the county wherein the service is made, or by the sheriff's deputy, or by any person over 18 years of age who is competent to be a witness in the action, *other than a party*.

D. Is the judgment of February 13, 2017 void because SHA neglected to serve on Maynor either its Motion for restitution or its Certificate for an Order to Show Cause in violation of Civil Rule 5?

E, Did the trial court err by infringing upon Maynor's constitutional and Rule 5 - Rule 7(b)(1) right to notice?

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

"CP" citations refer to REVISED INDEX FILED in KING County Superior Court April 12, 2017. "Op" commends to the court's attention COA decision dated July 30, 2018.