FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
12/3/2018 2:52 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

NO. 96433-5

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEATTLE, WASHINGTON, a public body corporate and politic,

Plaintiff / Respondent,

V.

STANLEY MAYNOR,

Respondent / Petitioner.

PLAINTIFF/RESPONDENT'S REPLY BRIEF

Linda J. Brosell, WSBA No 22260 Seattle Housing Authority 190 Queen Anne Ave. N., 5th floor Seattle, WA 98109 206-615-3315 Plaintiff/Respondent / Seattle Housing Authority

I. INTRODUCTION

Petitioner Stanley Maynor ("Mr. Maynor") seeks review of an opinion of the Court of Appeals, Division I. The Court of Appeals affirmed a King County Superior Court judge's decision (on revision) in an unlawful detainer action between Mr. Maynor and Seattle Housing Authority ("SHA") after Mr. Maynor defaulted in his obligation to pay rent. The revision affirmed a decision of a court commissioner who examined the parties and determined that there was no material issue of fact or law in controversy whether Mr. Maynor was in unlawful detainer status, and that SHA was entitled to regain possession of the property under the unlawful detainer laws of RCW 59.12 and 59.18 et. seq.

At the show cause hearing the commissioner entered an Order finding that Mr. Maynor was in unlawful detainer status and directed the clerk of the court to issue a writ of restitution after Mr. Maynor admitted that he failed to pay rent when due and failed to pay rent within the period identified in the statutory notice.

II. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

Respondent Seattle Housing Authority ("SHA") is a public body corporate and politic authorized by RCW 35.82.010 *et seq.* SHA owns and operates a number of apartment buildings, including the unit formerly occupied by Mr. Maynor in a building commonly referred to as Stewart Manor that is part of SHA's low income public housing program.

Mr. Maynor was a participant in SHA's low income public housing program and a tenant in SHA's Stewart Manor apartment building.

III. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Mr. Maynor seeks review of the Unpublished Opinion of the Court of Appeals in its Case No. 76553-1-I. The Unpublished Opinion was filed on July 30, 2018. A copy of the Unpublished Opinion is in the Appendix at pages 1 through 11.

IV. SUMMARY

On October 13, 2016, SHA issued Mr. Maynor a statutory notice to pay or vacate. After Mr. Maynor failed to pay and failed to vacate within the time stated in the statutory notice, SHA commenced this action, filing and serving Mr. Maynor with a summons and complaint: service was by alternative service (authorized by the unlawful detainer statutes). At a show cause hearing on December 19, 2016, King County court commissioner, Henry Judson, examined the parties and found Mr. Maynor in unlawful detainer status and entered an order stating the same. The Order also directed the clerk of the court to issue a writ of restitution. The Order acknowledged that because of the lack of personal service on Mr. Maynor, SHA was not entitled to a monetary judgment.

Mr. Maynor filed a Motion for Revision in Superior Court and Superior Court Judge John Ruhl, entered new findings of facts and conclusions of law finding that Mr. Maynor was, in fact, in unlawful detainer status and that there was no material issue of fact or law in controversy. CP 79-83. Mr. Maynor filed an appeal in Division I seeking to overturn both the commissioner's order and Judge Ruhl's order. The Court of Appeals affirmed Judge Ruhl's findings.

Mr. Maynor now seeks review of the case in the Supreme Court, claiming that the court's review of whether a commissioner can preside over a show cause hearing is a matter of "first impression." Mr. Maynor failed to address that Judge Ruhl reviewed the case on revision and found Mr. Maynor in unlawful detainer status. Neither the appellate court nor the Supreme Court would review the commissioner's findings after a judge reviewed the commissioner's decisions and upheld the same.

Mr. Maynor did not claim that SHA or the court violated the requirements of the unlawful detainer statutes of RCW 59.12 and 59.18, et. seq. but instead, makes claims that the court erred by failing to apply rules and procedures not related to the unlawful detainer action. Mr. Maynor's pleadings failed to address the requirements of the unlawful detainer statutes and failed to state a defense to SHA's action.

V. SHA'S STATEMENT OF ISSUES

A. Should the Supreme Court deny review of an opinion affirming that Mr. Maynor was in unlawful detainer status when he remained in possession of the unit after he failed to pay the rent when due and failed to pay as required by the statutory notice?

B. Should the Supreme Court deny review of an opinion affirming that defendant was in unlawful detainer status based upon defendant's misunderstanding of the process under which Washington unlawful detainer statutes operate?

VI. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On October 13, 2016, SHA issued Mr. Maynor a statutory notice to pay or vacate. CP 4 & 35. After Mr. Maynor failed to pay and failed to vacate within the time stated in the notice, SHA commenced this action with the filing and service of a summons and complaint, serving Mr. Maynor by alternative service. CP 1-6. Mr. Maynor's submittal to the court prior to the show cause hearing indicated that he had not paid the outstanding rent. CP 30. At the hearing on December 19, 2018, King County Court Commissioner, Henry Judson examined the parties: SHA's witness testified that rent remained unpaid after the statutory notice was issued and Mr. Maynor admitted that he failed to pay the rent and the court found Mr. Maynor in unlawful detainer status and entered an order stating the same. CP 34-36. The Order also directed the clerk of the court to issue a writ of restitution. The judgment entered acknowledged that because of the lack of personal service on Mr. Maynor, SHA was not entitled to a monetary judgment. CP 34-36.

Mr. Maynor filed a Motion for Revision in superior court and Superior Court Judge John Ruhl, entered new findings of facts and

conclusions of law finding that Mr. Maynor was in unlawful detainer status and that the eviction was lawful and upheld. CP 79-83.

Mr. Maynor filed an appeal in Division I seeking to overturn both the Commissioner's Order and Judge Ruhl's Order. The Court of Appeals affirmed the Superior Court's findings. A copy of the Unpublished Opinion is in the Appendix at pages 1 through 11.

Mr. Maynor now seeks review of the case claiming that the issue of whether a court commissioner is authorized by law to preside over an unlawful detainer action at a show cause hearing is a case of first impression that should be reviewed by the Supreme Court. Mr. Maynor failed to address that Judge Ruhl reviewed the case on revision and found him in unlawful detainer status. Neither the Appellate Court nor the Supreme Court would review the commissioner's findings after a judge reviewed and denied revision of the commissioner's order.

VII. ARGUMENT

A. Mr. Maynor's request for review based upon the question of whether a commissioner may preside over a show cause hearing in an unlawful detainer action is neither a question of first impression, nor is it unsettled.

1. If granted, the Supreme Court would not review the commissioner's findings: Settled law requires that the court review the findings of the judge on revision.

Commissioners' rulings are "subject to revision by the superior court." RCW 2.24.050. "On revision, the superior court reviews both the commissioner's findings of fact and conclusions of law de novo based upon the evidence and issues presented to the commissioner." *State v. Ramer*, 151 Wn.2d 106, 113, 86 P.3d 132 (2004). Once the superior court makes a decision on revision, the appeal is from that decision. *Id.* This court therefore reviews the superior court's ruling, not the commissioner's. *Faciszewski v. Brown*, 185 Wn.2d 1040, \$10 and footnote 2; 386 P.3d 711 (2016).

The unpublished opinion by the appellate court thoroughly examined and dismissed Mr. Maynor's claim that a court commissioner is not vested with the authority to preside over a hearing. See, Appendix at pages 4-6.

Notwithstanding, it is well-settled law, as discussed above, that the court would not review the commissioner's findings, but instead, would review the findings and order that were entered after a de novo review by a superior court judge as required by RCW 2.24.050. Because the court would not address the commissioner's findings, Mr. Maynor's primary request for review based upon an issue of "first impression" is incorrect and the court should deny his request for review.

2. Defendant's pleadings have consistently misstated and misapplied the rules applicable to unlawful detainer actions.

The unlawful detainer act and the Residential Landlord Tenant Act create a special, summary proceeding for the recovery of possession of real property. *Hous. Auth. of Seattle v. Silva*, 94 Wn. App. 731, 734, 972 P.2d 952 (1999) . In order to take advantage of this process, a landlord must comply with the requirements of the statute. *Hous. Auth. of City of Everett v. Terry*, 114 Wn.2d 558, 563-64, 789 P.2d 745 (1990) .

Mr. Maynor does not claim that SHA or the court failed to comply with the unlawful detainer statutes: Instead, he argues that he was entitled to greater notice and due process afforded by various Civil Rules not applicable to unlawful detainer statutes. He fails to understand that as a summary proceeding, the unlawful detainer statutes of RCW 59.12 & 59.18 et. seq, govern the process, and where any conflicts arise between the Civil Rules and the rules for a special proceeding, the rules for the special proceeding prevail. CR 81.

Mr. Maynor submits that SHA's service of process pursuant to RCW 59.18.055 was not effective, claiming a right to personal service pursuant to CR 4, yet he failed to cite any authority showing that service pursuant to RCW 59.18.055 is invalid. The court of appeals affirmed that proper service was complete. See, Appendix at page 4.

Mr. Maynor challenges the commissioner's powers (which are not at issue upon appeal as more fully discussed above in Section A). The appellate court dismissed his challenge by citing the applicable law. See, Appendix at pages 4-5.

Mr. Maynor states that because he disagreed with the termination, and because he challenged the calculations of rent due, there is a case in controversy. Mr. Maynor fails to recognize that the issue of whether he is in "unlawful detainer status" was settled when SHA established that he was in arrears in rent and did not pay as required by the statutory notice. Mr. Maynor's arguments do not change the fact that he was in "unlawful detainer status" as defined by RCW 59.18.030. See, Appendix at pages 5-6.

Mr. Maynor raises other claims that he did not receive due process of law. Under the unlawful detainer statutes, a defendant is entitled to the due process provided in the statute, including the right to be heard. *Leda v. Whisnand*, 150 Wn. App. 69, 83, 207 P.3d 468 (2009). The appellate court found that Mr. Maynor received the due process required in an unlawful detainer action and aptly noted that, "[t]he opportunity to be heard is distinct from the right to a full trial. It is undisputed that a defendant at a show cause hearing 'is not entitled to a full trial." See, Appendix at page 7 citing, *Leda*, 150 Wn.App at 81.

The appellate court addressed the remainder of Mr. Maynor's appeal regarding insufficient process based upon CR 52 and CR 54, asserting that SHA failed to provide to him, five days' in advance of a trial, a proposed order. The appellate court found both CR 52 and 54 inapplicable, since the order was not entered after a trial upon contested issues of material fact. The court also dismissed the application of these

civil rules as inconsistent with RCW 59.18.380, and therefore not applicable pursuant to CR 81. See, Appendix at page 8.

VIII. CONCLUSION

Based upon the above discussion, SHA requests that the Petition for Discretionary Review be denied

December 3, 2018.